ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COVMERCE STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 9, 2003
3:29 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Tom Anderson, Chair
Representative Bob Lynn, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Nancy Dahl strom
Representative Carl Gatto

Represent ati ve Nor man Rokeberg
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative David CGuttenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 234

"An Act relating to brewpubs, and continuing the existence of
the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board; and providing for an
effective date.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 224

"An Act relating to a tobacco product manufacturer's conpliance
wWith certain statutory requirenents regarding cigarette sales;
and providing for an effective date.”

- MOVED HB 224 QUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 195
"An Act relating to coverage offered under an individual policy
of health care insurance; and providing for an effective date."
- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 234

SHORT TI TLE: BREWPUBS; ABC BOARD
SPONSOR( S) :  REPRESENTATI VE( S) MCGUI RE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2003



Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action

04/ 02/ 03 0739 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

04/ 02/ 03 0739 (H L&C, FIN

04/ 09/ 03 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 224
SHORT TI TLE: Cl GARETTE SALES REQUI REMENTS
SPONSOR(S): RLS BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Action

03/ 28/ 03 0673 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

03/ 28/ 03 0673 (H L&C, FIN

03/ 28/ 03 0673 (H) FN1: ZERQ( LAW

03/ 28/ 03 0673 (H FN2: ZERQ( REV)

03/ 28/ 03 0673 (H GOVERNOR S TRANSM TTAL LETTER

04/ 09/ 03 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE LESI L McGUl RE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: As sponsor of HB 234, presented the
proposed comm ttee substitute.

GLEN BRADY, President

Silver @ulch Brew ng; President

Al aska CHARR (Cabaret Hotel Restaurant & Retailers Association)
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against the changes for brewubs
in Sections 2 and 3 of HB 234.

MATT JONES

Moose' s Toot h

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 234.

GARY KLOPFER, Owner

Snow Goose Rest aur ant

Sl eepi ng Lady Brew ng Conpany

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in favor of aspects of HB 234,
advocating renoving all production caps for breweries.

BOB KLEI N, Chairman

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 2- April 9, 2003



Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Depart ment of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Commented on the history of alcoho
i ndustry legislation during the hearing on HB 234.

JUANI TA HENSLEY, Speci al Assi stant

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Departnent of Public Safety

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Expl ained the amendnents to HB 234 that
woul d nove the ABC board from the Departnent of Revenue to the
Department of Public Safety.

PAT DAVI DSON, Legislative Auditor

Di vision of Legislative Audit

Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Conmittee

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During the hearing on HB 234, explained the
recommendations fromthe nost recent |egislative sunset audit on
t he ABC board.

DOUG GRI FFIN, Director

Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Departnent of Revenue,

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  During the hearing on HB 234, explained the
i nvestigation of ganbling on |icensed prem ses.

M KE BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney GCeneral

Commerci al Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented HB 224 on behalf of the
adm ni stration.

JOHANNA BALES, Revenue Auditor

Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in favor of HB 224 for the
Departnent of Revenue; explained that she enforces aspects of
t he Tobacco Master Settlement Agreenent.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2003



TAPE 03-31, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R TOM ANDERSON cal | ed the House Labor and Conmerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:29 p.m Represent ati ves
Ander son, Dahlstrom Gatto, Rokeberg, Crawford, and CGuttenberg
were present at the call to order. Representative Lynn arrived
as the nmeeting was in progress.

HB 234- BREWPUBS; ABC BOARD

Nunmber 0058

CHAI R ANDERSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 234, "An Act relating to brewubs, and
continuing the existence of the Alcoholic Beverage Control
Board; and providing for an effective date."

Nunmber 0083

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noved to adopt conmttee substitute (CS)
for HB 234, Version 23-LS0862\1, Ford, 4/4/03, as the working
docunent . There being no objection, Version | was before the
committee.

Number 0103

REPRESENTATI VE  LESI L McGUI RE, Al aska State Legi sl ature,
explained that HB 234 is a reauthorization of the Alcoholic
Beverage Control (ABC) Board, which regulates the alcoholic
beverage dispensary industry. House Bill 234 extends the sunset
on the board, recognizing that it has served its function well.
The Joint Commttee on Legislative Budget and Audit (LB&A)
conducted a recent audit of the ABC board, and one audit
recomendation is incorporated in Section 1. She said this
section anmends AS 04.06.110 [Peace officer powers] by renoving
| anguage which previously authorized the board to investigate
prostitution, ganbling, and other related offenses. She said it
was the position of LB&A that this activity was beyond the scope
of the ABC board.

Number 0232
REPRESENTATIVE MGQJ RE noted that Section 2 of HB 234 would

change the anount that brewpubs are allowed to manufacture.
Anot her provision in Section 3 allows a brewub, for exanple,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2003



the Mdose's Tooth [in Anchorage], to sell beer in the form of
growers in quantities of five gallons or less to an individual.
The current law gives an unfair advantage of one business over
anot her because it states that beer nust be brewed on the
prem ses in order to allow the sale of growers with food. She

said that nust have been an oversight. She said the point of
Sections 2 and 3 is the recognition of a free narket. The
sunset provision of the bill will extend the board's |life unti

June 30, 2006. The l|egislature has a precedent of extending the
ABC board in three-year increnents, requiring another LB&A audit
and | egislative action.

Nunber 0460
REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said its inportant for commttee nenbers

to understand that Section 3 was brought about by an anomaly in
the law that really applies to only one business in Al aska. The

Ni neteenth legislature passed a law [creating a type of |iquor
|icense] that was repealed in succeeding years. The brewpub
license requires that the brewing apparatus be on the sane
prem se as the beverage dispensary |icense. In this one

i nstance, the brewery was separate from the |icensed prem ses,
and that has caused a |lot of problens. Wen there was a change
in the grower anmount |ast year, it was probably a drafting
error. This is why Sections 2 and 3 in the CS |ook so simlar,
but there is a slight difference.

Number 0597

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG noted that Sections 1 and 4 are
addressed in the LB&A audit but questioned why Sections 2 and 3
on brewpubs are not covered in a separate bill

REPRESENTATI VE McGU RE said all the policy changes to the ABC
Board are relevant and fit within the title of the bill

Number 0664

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO questioned if Sections 2 and 3 affect only
one busi ness. He suggested that when the [law] was witten, it
didn't address a specific operator, it was witten as an idea,
and that the operator and the law finally collided.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG clarified that Sections 2 and 3 of the

bill are alnost identical in affect, on page 2, starting on line
24, subsection (d), that Ilanguage is unlike the rest of the
statute because of the circunstances. When the legislature

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2003



revised the type of license, it grandfathered in severa
busi nesses under those licenses, so when the law was [l ater]
rewitten, the legislature had to ~create that speci a
subsection. He acknow edged that he wote the | anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO repeated his question, saying he did not
understand the history of the |anguage.

Number 790

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ained that the legislature created a
brewpub license in statute, then later created the tavern
| i cense. Six licensees received these tavern |icenses. Lat er
t he | egi sl ature pr ohi bi t ed t hese tavern | i censes, but
grandfathered in these businesses, so the legislature had to
wite the law around these grandfathered businesses. Af ter
that, the legislature required these businesses to get a
beverage dispensary license to wipe this whole thing out. But
there still remains an anonal ous situation under the statute.
He said he has an idea of how to fix the confusion and do away
with all these |egal distinctions. He wants to bring fairness
and clarity to the issue.

REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE responded to Representative Gatto's
guesti on. She said the language in Section 3 was specifically
drafted on the advice of a particular |obbyist to include a
specific business. She said she |ooks at the issue as a policy
maker. If the lawis going to be fair, it ought not be based on
one small technicality of one business. The |anguage [in the
| aw] was drafted to exclude that business fromthe narketpl ace.

Nunmber 0988

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG clarified that the existing |aw was
drafted to [mtigate] the problens of the business. The
| egi slature was changing its policy, and it had to grandfather
t hose businesses in so they could continue to operate. He said
her decision to renove sections fromthe lawis a policy call.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said the | aw may have been directed at
one business, but when the playing field changes, other
busi nesses cone into play, and the conpetitive nature of the
mar ket changes.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE said she favors businesses conpeting for
i deas and products. She does not want to craft |egislation that

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2003



excludes or provides wunfair advantage to one business over
anot her.

Nunber 1077
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD noted that the Departnment of Public
Safety delivered anendnents before the neeting, and he brought

the amendnents to the attention of the sponsor.

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE said she will consider the departnent's

anmendnents and will respond at the conmittee' s next neeting when
the bill is heard again.
Nunmber 1184

GLEN BRADY, President, Silver Qlch Brew ng; President, Al aska
CHARR (Cabaret Hot el Restaurant & Retailers Association),
testified against Sections 2 and 3 of HB 234. He described the
brewpub issue as a nuisance issue; it comes up every year. He
said he agreed with the sponsor's statenents about the val ue of
the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board and the significance of
Sections 1 and 4 in HB 234. He reviewed the three-tier system
in Alaska law which heavily regulates the nmanufacture,

distribution, and retail sale of alcoholic beverages. He said
busi nesses in the industry support the board as an appropriate
nmechanism to collect taxes and enforce regulations. But by

integrating two tiers of the system - production and retail -
the legislature is creating the potential for the "tied house"

system in Britain, he warned. He said he favors conpetition,
however, AS 04. 11. 450 [ Prohi bited fi nanci al i nterest]
specifically excludes him a brewery owner, from having a
financial interest in a retail establishnent. The |aw does not
permt himto do what these two [brewpub] |icensees are trying

to do. He said it's incorrect to say that HB 234 levels the
playing field. He said he chose to be a brewery; he could have
chosen to be a brewub; they are fundanentally different
busi ness operati ons. He described Moose's Tooth and d acier
Brewhouse as great businesses, that between the two of them
have 500 enpl oyees. He explained that he produces as nuch beer
as both of them and has three enployees. That should underline
the fundanmental difference of the two types of businesses, he

sai d. He said there's enough room in the marketplace for
breweri es and brewpubs alike. But HB 234 allows a brewpub to
act like a brewery, which is inappropriate for several reasons,
he sai d. He added that it's unfair conpetition; it shortcuts
two tiers of the three-tier system it wll make regulation of

beverage alcohol nore difficult; and it benefits two operators

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2003



to the exclusion of all others. Even ot her Anchorage brewpubs

are not in favor of this bill, he said. He asserted that the
entire industry - package store owners, bar owners, restaurant
owners, breweries, and other brewpubs - are not in favor of HB
234. It is special interest legislation at its worst, he said

He said his letter to the comnmttee |ays out a conplicated issue
that has a long history and many facets. The situation has many
significant ramfications that aren't obvious in the sinple
deletion of a section [of the |aw].

Nunmber 1437

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said this is the old ABC board Chri stnas
tree battl eground. He referred to AS 04.11.450. He said he'd
like to fix this law, once and for all. He said it mght be
easier to fix the law and allow M. Brady as a brewer to also
own a restaurant.

MR. BRADY replied that he and other brewery owners formulated
their business plans, found capital and took risk, and chose to
develop a different type of business. He said he does not want
to be in the bar and restaurant business; it's an entirely
di fferent business. That provision is the framework for the
three-tier system

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said that during the "tavern wars," the
cl ause was added that restricted a brewery's ability to enter
into any other business. The | aw established a different type
of license which has since been taken off the books. Now t he
issue is brewpubs and how can they do whol esal e business, he
sai d. The nore produce they sell wholesale, the nore they
conpete with the breweries. He summarized M. Brady's position
that because of the three-tiered system he should be treated
differently because he's a wholesale manufacturer and the
brewpubs are retailers.

Nunber 1587
MR. BRADY clarified that his issue is not the brewub's

production cap. Wen l|legislation raised the production cap from
75,000 to 150,000 gallons, the stated purpose was to neet the

demand of the on-prem se pub. He said he believes that was a
m srepresentation of the brewpubs' intentions. H's issue is not
how nmuch beer brewpubs sell in their pubs; he said they should

be allowed to sell as nuch beer as they can within existing
regulations in their retail facilities. The crux of the issue
has always been, why are the brewubs conpeting with the

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2003



breweries [in the whol esale market]. To allow breweries to open
restaurants is not a true conprom se.

Nunber 1645

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he is considering renoving that
distinction [between brewpubs and breweries] thereby allow ng
breweries to have retail prem ses. He also noted the
possibility of doing away with all caps and limtations. For
three of the l|ast four years, the brewpubs have cone back to the
| egi slature, and he said he's tired of it.

Number 1691

REPRESENTATIVE MGU RE said that it's inportant that these
busi nesses keep com ng back. If a citizen believes a policy is
wrong, the person will continue to return to |awmakers to get

the situation changed. She clarified that this is not special
interest legislation; it falls within her right as a | awrmaker to
| ook at existing state policies. She said she is interested in
Representative Rokeberg's idea of a conpromse which would

elimnate the distinction [between brewpubs and breweries]. The
policy argunents behind the law are not going to go away, she
sai d. She objected to statenents about the other parties

notives. She said she never heard the two brewpubs prom se that
if last year's | aw was passed, they would be satisfied.

MR. BRADY explained that he conpetes with breweries in an
extrenely conpetitive narketpl ace. Rai | way Brew ng Conpany, one

of the four licensees with a brewery-restaurant conbination
| icense, went out of business a few years back. The Moose's
Toot h bought that equipnent at auction. Last year, when the

issue was raising the production cap, Mose's Tooth could have
started another brewpub attached to its other dispensary |icense
and doubled its own cap. However, he stated, it's cheaper to
hire a |obbyist and change the law than it is to conply wth
exi sting | aw.

Nunmber 1867

REPRESENTATI VE McGUI RE stated that governnent should not create
barriers so that businesses have to hire |obbyists to overcone

the law so they can participate in the marketplace. She said
the ABC board does have an inportant role, and regulations
regarding safety natters are inportant. The tinme for this

di stinction [between brewpubs and breweries] is here and gone.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 9- April 9, 2003



MR BRADY said it boils dowmn to the value of the three-tier
system

Nunber 1915

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO confirmed with M. Brady that when he
started his business, there was a set of laws in place, which
have since changed and which have created a di sadvantage for him
and other breweries. He said that HB 234 takes away the
protections that were in place for the breweries.

REPRESENTATI VE MGU RE responded that the |egislature changes
laws all the tine. She said that |egislators are policymakers;
times change, and the conditions <change in all types of
i ndustries and occupations. That's why one | egislature cannot
bind a future | egislature.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked what happens to the market if HB
234 passes.

Nunber 2010

MR. BRADY replied that he is out in the market conpeting for
retail space on shelves and for tap handle space in bars and
restaurants. That is how he derives his incone. House Bill 234
allows a brewpub to go into the marketplace in an unrestricted
manner and subsidize the sale of its beer. He said he cannot
afford to give beer away because that is his [profit] margin; he
has no other incone to offset those marketing expenses. A
brewpub is primarily a retail establishnent; it has inconme from
ot her sources - food service, on prem se sales. When brewpubs
go into the marketplace, they go in with a trenmendous advantage
because they can offset this expense and call it a marketing
expense because they derive their incone from retail sales.
Having tap handles out in the market is a very effective

mar keti ng tool. He said he shouldn't be conpeting with themin
that arena. If HB 234 doesn't pass, its not going to hurt
brewpubs, but it wll hurt him and other brewery owners

tremendousl y, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked M. Brady if the brewpubs wll be
hurt if they don't get a raise in their caps.

MR. BRADY said that they have thrived under previous |aws; he
said he thinks they would continue to thrive.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -10- April 9, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked him as a representative of CHARR
for the group's opinion. He said that the restaurant |icense
was added [to state law] in 1996, but now the legislature has to
| ook at the beverage dispensary |license too because of brewpubs.

MR. BRADY replied that brewery restaurants are in conpetition

with holders of beverage dispensary |icenses. He said CHARR
menbers have seen the value of their dispensary |icenses eroded
significantly by other |egislation. It's tough tines for

everybody in the industry, he said.
Number 2190

MATT JONES, Moose's Tooth, Anchorage, explained that in 1996 he
received a restaurant |icense and a brewery license. At that
time, he could have purchased any nunmber and conbination of
restaurant |icenses and brewery |icenses. He said there were no
production caps on brew ng beer, and there were no restrictions
on either wholesale or retail sales. After he received his
| icense, this changed. Hi s conpany was frozen where it was; it
could only own one restaurant and one brewery, and from that
point on, there's a long history. He said from the very
begi nning, his business used the proper channels and applied for
and was awarded the proper licenses that had no restrictions on
whol esale or retail. The law was changed on him Currently he
owns a brewpub that consists of a retail side - the restaurant -
and the brew ng side. Before | egislative changes |ast year, he
had a 75,000-gallon production cap with no restrictions. Last
year, legislation changed the production cap from 75,000 to
150, 000 gallons, basically doubling it, but froze the whol esale
| evel at the 2001 figure, which for the Mose's Tooth was 15, 000
gallons. The Il egislature doubled his production cap but |ocked
himin at his 2001 figures, which was about 10 percent of what

he coul d produce. H s conpany wants the legislature to allow
the Mdose's Tooth to sell nore on the wholesale nmarket.
Generally, if a J[another] state has a production cap on a

brewpub, it lets that business owner decide whether that product
is sold wholesale or retail.

Nunber 2353

MR. JONES di scussed the issue of growers. In his business, the
restaurant and the brewery are separated by sone distance. The
original brewub |anguage allowed him to sell beer to a person
on the prem ses, a retail transaction.

TAPE 03-31, SIDE B

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2003



MR. JONES said when the law was rewitten, it prohibited his
conpany from selling quantities of beer out of his retail
[restaurant], the Mdose's Tooth in mdtown Anchorage; he could
only sell beer from the brewery at Ship Creek. This puts his
business at a disadvantage to other brewubs. The grow er
clause in HB 234 attenpts to address this issue.

MR. JONES addressed the allowable |evel of wholesale activity.
He said he is asking the legislature to return to the earlier
law, allowing each brewpub to decide what it does wth its
production cap, whether wholesale or retail.

CHAI R ANDERSON handed t he gavel to Representative Rokeberg.
Nunmber 2317

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Jones about when the state
required him to have an al cohol beverage I|icense. Didn't M.
Jones argue then that he didn't want to be a bar, that he wanted
to be a brewery or a different type of business?

MR. JONES replied that the Mwose's Tooth has a full [Iiquor
license; it can sell hard liquor under a beverage dispensary
| i cense. However, the restaurant still only serves beer and
W ne. When it first opened, he wanted to run a pizzeria, sell
beer and wine, and brew his own beer. He said the Muose's Tooth
is far from a [typical] bar. Food along with beer is the
primary forrmula for his business.

NUVBER 2260

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if the timng of the opening his
busi ness was unfortunate.

MR. JONES confirned that four or five conpanies in Anchorage
obt ai ned restaurant and brewery licenses at the sanme tine, but
his is the only business where the brewery is |ocated apart from
the restaurant. He explained that occurred in order to conply
w th Anchorage nunicipal code that states that only incidental
distribution can be done out of the business; noving kegs nust
be located in an industrial area. So he |located the brewery in
Ship Creek in order to conply with the nunicipal code.

Nunber 2206

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that M. Jones, because of
the separation of his restaurant and brewery, is a victimof the

| aws that evolved over the years. That's why the legislature
drafted legislation that grandfathered his situation, to do as
little harm to his business as possible. He noted that the

grandfathering | aw was drafted after his situation occurred, not
in [advance].

Nunber 2167

GARY KLOPFER, Omer, Snow Goose Restaurant, Sleeping Lady
Brewi ng Conpany, said he is testifying because this issue
continues to conme up, and the bills that pass don't clear it up;
they just nake it worse. Years ago, he decided to start with a
restaurant license and a brewery license. Part of that decision
was financial; he didn't want to run a bar because buying a

liquor license is expensive for a new business. Several ot her
busi nesses followed suit. He attenmpted to open  his
restaurant/brewery, then the legislature stepped in, nore out of
fear than fact, to stop this type of Ilicense from existing

anynore. All of these businesses were stopped in their tracks.
So every year, when the |egislature nakes changes, its usually
agai nst one party or another, which is unfair, he noted. He
said he favors going back and neking the field level for
everybody, so that everybody can conpete; it's unfair now. Hi s

friends who own breweries - if they want to run a beer garden in
the sumer and sell hanburgers, they can't do it. They're
restricted fromdoing that by [statute]. That's unfortunate, he
said. Then they |look at him who can sell as nmany hanburgers as
he wants and can also wholesale his beer. Its not fair, he
sai d.

Nunber 2190

MR. KLOPFER said that raising the production cap is ridiculous.
If the parties that operate breweries are successful, why
woul dn't the state want them to continue to grow, he asked. He
reconmended renoving the 150,000-gallon cap conpletely. He
suggested that breweries be allowed to buy any other |[|icense
they desire, so they can conpete. Anytinme the |egislature
creates artificial boundaries, sonebody's toes get stepped on,
he sai d. He said these businesses are good for the state and
the cities; they all enploy people. The | egislature should

encour age busi ness, not discourage it, he added.

Nunber 1967

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -13- April 9, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said he is trying to find a long-term
sol uti on. He confirmed that M. Klopfer has a brewpub with a
beverage dispensary |icense and that he's covered by the gallon
restrictions on his wholesale and retail sales. If the
| egi sl ature chose to change the economc interest prohibitions,
it would still have to deal with the gallon caps to nake it a
conpletely level playing field. That would allow brewpubs to
produce as much as a brewery.

MR. KLOPFER said he could live with that, providing that the
breweries could also do the sane thing, buy a restaurant |icense
and have a beer garden, or sell liquor if they want. It would
be unfair if he could do it but the breweries couldn't.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG said changing the economc interest
provision in current law [AS 04.11.450, Prohibited financi al
interest] would help M. Jones but it wouldn't help M. Klopfer
regarding the issue of production caps. He surmsed that to
make the playing field truly level, the l|egislature would have
to do both: renove the productions caps and renove the economc
restrictions. He added that wuld be difficult to do
politically.

Number 1891

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked M. Klopfer if there is any
restriction preventing him from opening another brewery and
usi ng the sane brand nane.

MR. KLOPFER replied yes, because under current |aw, once he owns
a liquor license, it's illegal to buy a brewery license.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG pointed out that this is an exanple of
the economc interest barrier he's been tal king about.

MR. KLOPFER said that's correct. The state could require that
he buy another license - and nmake nore noney on the additional
| i cense.

Nunber 1837

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD recalled that during the debate |ast
year on this law, the |egislature was concerned about opening up
[the field] to conpetition from MIler or Budweiser that m ght
buy large restaurants or beer gardens, thereby damagi ng Al aska's
honmegr own busi nesses. Is that still part of the debate, he
asked.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2003



MR. KLOPFER replied that he's not sure that national conpetition

was the argunent. The issue was nore that the legislature
create a level playing field for Alaskans [in the brew ng
business]. He said the real crux of the issue was when al coho
- the beverage dispensary license - entered the picture. He

said he thinks its against federal statutes for Budweiser or
MIller to own liquor licenses. That used to be the Chinese Wl
that separated the different |icenses, he said. This bil
essentially states that brewpubs are also de facto breweries,
whi ch neans that brewpubs own beverage dispensary |icenses and
breweries too.

Number 1753

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD said the 150,000-gallon limt was snal
enough that MIller and Budweiser and the other |arge national
beers would be excluded from comng in and conpeting against
Al aska's small honmegrown breweries and brewpubs. If its not
part of the debate anynore, perhaps the |egislature needs to
open this issue of production limts. He said he is |ooking for
suggesti ons.

MR. KLOPFER said he doesn't understand why restaurant/brewery
conmbi nati ons have been outl awed. | f businesses in Honer or
G rdwod have a successful m crobrewery operation, it's
| udicrous for the state to say they can't have a beer garden or
sel |l hanmburgers during the tourist season

Number 1690

BOB  KLEIN, Chai r man, Al coholic Beverage Control Boar d,
Department of Revenue, referred to Representative Crawford's
comment about the past debate involving national breweries. The
restriction on breweries against owning other |icenses precedes

the entire brewpub debate or any legislation, he said. The
restriction was instituted initially to prevent what is known in
the industry as "tied-houses." An exanple of a "tied-house"

woul d be Budwei ser opening retail establishnments throughout the
state and only allowng their product to be sold there.
Excesses have occurred in the history of the industry, he said,
and there was an attenpt in Title 4, [Alcoholic Beverages,] of
state law to prevent that from happening in Alaska. He said the
ABC board prefers not to take a position on the brewpub issue
and will carry out the legislature's law through regulations.
He acknow edged that the brewpub issue is a very confusing one.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -15- April 9, 2003



Trying to resolve it through regulation by the board is the
wrong approach, he said.

MR. KLEIN explained that the ABC board net |last week and
unfortunately, the board had an earlier version of HB 234 that
did not contain the commttee substitute's Section 1 [that
renoves certain police powers from the board]. He said the
board disagreed with the original recommendation by LB&A that
ABC staff should not investigate violations of ganbling or
prostitution laws on licensed prem ses. Basically, he said, the

ABC board is there [visiting the licensed facilities]. It has
denonstrated that it can and does a good job, and if the ABC
board doesn't do it, it just doesn't get done, he said. It's

not as if the ABC board is enforcing ganbling |aws throughout
the state; it's only on licensed prem ses.

MR. KLEIN said that the board is pleased to be extended to 2006,
per Section 4 of HB 234.

Nunmber 1560

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG reiterated that the ABC board does not
agree with Section 1 of HB 234, [which renoves the investigation
of prostitution and ganbling from +the board purvi ew .
Regarding the econom c interest prohibitions, AS 04.11.450, he
asked M. Klein to offer his personal opinion on how these
prohi bitions are part of the three-tiered system

Nunber 1514

MR. KLEIN said the issue is the public interest being served by
not allowing tied-houses in the state, by not allowing |arge
breweries to cross that line. He said if the state is concerned
about the big guys comng in and exercising undo influence, then
perhaps renoving the restriction of cross-ownership from
breweries and or brewpubs that produce |ess than a given anount
m ght answer all the questions. He said he sees no objection to
Silver Gulch Brewing owning a restaurant; it nmakes sense. \Wen
the whole brewpub issue cane before the ABC board, nenbers
questioned whether it's inportant where a retail product was
manuf act ur ed. He said the elenents of alcoholic beverage
control are: is it legally obtained, is it sold in a controlled
environnent, and is it sold to the proper custoners, in other
words, not to mnors or inebriates. The rest of it should be a
| evel playing field.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -16- April 9, 2003



MR. KLEIN, at the request of Representative Rokeberg, explained
that a "tied-house" dates back to England when there were
excesses by breweries and attenpts to control the marketing and
pricing of products. He answered questions from Representative
Gatto about the conponents of the three-tiered system He said
the system begins wth the producer - or the distiller, brewer,
or inporter. The second tier is the wholesaler, and the third
tier is the retailer, which consist of bars, package stores, and
restaurants. The ABC board deals with the industry as an
entity.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if there are any problens if the
producers, whol esalers, and retailers are the same entity.

MR. KLEIN said that would not be a problemfor the ABC board.
Nurmber 1344

REPRESENTATI VE CRAWORD asked if M. Klein could comment on the
anendnent s proposed by the Departnent of Public Safety.

MR. KLEI N said he had not seen the amendnents.
Number 1302

JUANI TA HENSLEY, Special Assistant to the Comm ssioner, Ofice
of the Conm ssioner, Departnent of Public Safety, referred to
the governor's Executive Oder No. 110, now before the
| egi slature. This executive order noves the ABC board from the
Department of Revenue to the Departnment of Public Safety. After
reviewing the recommendations of the legislative audit, the
departnent proposed sone changes through anendnents to HB 234,
basically to nmake it easier for the departnent to assist the
i ndustry and the board. The first change woul d place the board
and its enployees in the Departnment of Public Safety. She noted
that the ABC board has not seen these anendnents, and she
apol ogi zed that the departnment has not had the chance to talk to
t he board.

Nunber 1205

MS5. HENSLEY said anot her change woul d add two additional nenbers
to the board, the conm ssioner of the Departnment of Public
Safety and the conmi ssioner from either the Departnment of
Revenue or the Departnent of Health and Social Services, since
they deal with alcohol issues. The terns of these nmenbers would
last as long as the tenure of the conm ssioner. The third

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -17- April 9, 2003



change is to have the director of the ABC board serve at the
pl easure of the governor, as is the case with nmany other Al aska

boards and comm ssi ons. The final change deals with renoving
the investigation of prostitution and ganbling violations from
the board' s purview She said that prostitution and ganbling

issues involving alcohol establishnments certainly should be
reviewed by the investigators, but it's a process that should
i nclude vice cops. The departnent would work directly with the
ABC investigators, who would work closely with local police or
the Al aska State Troopers. She said the departnent asked the
commttee to consider the proposed anendnents, all or in part.

Number 1051

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO comrented that HB 234 is becomng an
omni bus bi ||

M5. HENSLEY, in response to a question by Representative
Rokeberg, said the legislature nust act on the executive order
by a resolution before My 5. The effective date of the
transfer from the Departnent of Revenue to the Departnent of
Public Safety is July 1.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG noted that there was no reconmendation
in the legislative audit to place the comm ssioners of the
Departnents of Public Safety or Revenue on the ABC board.

Nunmber 0981

M5. HENSLEY noted that other boards and conm ssions include
departnment conm ssioners. She stated that there was a reference
in the audit to the Alaska Crimnal Justice Assessnent
Comm ssion recommendation [in its May 2000 report] to add two
nore nenbers to the board. Since the board would be placed in
the Departnent of Public Safety, it would be good to have the
commi ssi oner serve on the board, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG conmented that the ABC board is quasi-
judicial in nature and not |like a typical board. He said he
doesn't agree with addi ng comm ssioners to the board.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG questioned the anobunt of tine a
conmm ssioner has available to serve on such a board and noted
that the anmendnent does not provide for the conmm ssioner's
designee to serve in the conm ssioner's place.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 18- April 9, 2003



MS. HENSLEY suggested changing the departnent's anmendnent to
i ncl ude "conmm ssi oner or conm ssioner designee.”

Nunmber 0869

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG confirned that increasing the nunber of
menbers on the board increases the nunber required for a quorum
He asked why the departnment objects to ABC investigators acting
on illegal activities.

MS. HENSLEY replied that they are peace officers but not fully-
comm ssi oned officers.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if cases have been dism ssed
because of inproper procedures by the investigators.

M5. HENSLEY said she did not know. She said this nove of the
ABC board from the Departnent of Revenue to the Departnent of
Public Safety would align enforcenment functions within state
gover nnment . The Departnment of Public Safety enforces the sane
al cohol | aws.

Nunber 0677

PAT DAVIDSON, Legislative Auditor, Division of Legislative
Audit, Legislative Budget and Audit Commttee, Al aska State
Legislature, stated that the audit that was conducted [on the
ABC board] reconmended a three-year extension; a four-year
extension is the rule of thunb [for nobst boards]. The audit
identified nunmerous areas of needed inprovenents, and so
recoomended a three-year extension so that there can be tinely
fol | ow up. Some of the issues are operational in nature and
some, addressed in the committee substitute to HB 234, are
statutory in nature. Wen the legislature directed the board to

i nvestigate ganbl i ng and prostitution, it substantial ly
i ncreased the mssion of the ABC board, but the funding did not
I ncr ease. She said the focus of the board shifted away from
regulatory actions to enforcenent actions. The board was not
issuing tinely notices of violations. The auditors determ ned
that the original mssion of the ABC board was bei ng hanpered by
this expansion. The audit recommended the legislature

reeval uate whether it wanted the board to do this kind of work.
The executive order that noves the board into the Departnent of
Public Safety aligns it nore closely with |aw enforcenment. The
investigator could alert |law enforcenent officials to suspicious
activities and then return to other work, for exanple, nmaking
sure that licensees are not selling alcohol to mnors. The

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -19- April 9, 2003



audi t concl uded t hat t he ganbl i ng and prostitution
investigations were diluting the focus of the ABC board, she
sai d.

Nunmber 0635

V. DAVI DSON discussed the audit's second reconmmendation
regarding the increase in the nunber of nenbers on the board.
During the sunset period, the audit noted that there was a
probl em keepi ng nenbers on the board and getting them appointed
through the governor's office. This five-nmenber board is
particularly structured between industry and public nenbers.
When the new appoi ntnments or reappointnents are not tinely, that
bal ance is affected and the board can't get its work done in a
tinmely manner, she said. The Alaska Crimnal Justice Assessnent
Conmi ssion nmade 21 al cohol recommendations, and two were

addressed to the ABC board. The recomendations proposed
i ncreasing nenbers of the board, one from the public health or
medi cal conmunity, and the second from |aw enforcenent. The

conmm ssion stated that having those two additional points of
view on the board would better protect the public's interest.
So that would increase the board to seven nenbers: two industry
menbers, three public nmenbers, and two additional public nenbers
with a particular focus.

Nunber 0407

DOUG CRIFFIN, Director, Al coholic Beverage Control Boar d,
Departnent of Revenue, said the board has not been consulted or
briefed on the amendnents from the Departnment of Public Safety.
He said he was not prepared to conment on them

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG expl ai ned that Chair Anderson intends to
hold HB 234 over for additional consideration.

Number 0375

MR. GRIFFIN explained that the legislature gave the ABC board
the task of investigating ganbling and prostitution activities

[on licensed prem ses] four years ago. He said that the ABC
board has done this work historically. Al nost all the ganbling
cases on licensed premses over the last 25 years have been

investigated by ABC staff. He said the cases brought forward by
ABC investigators are not all prosecuted, not because of poor
i nvestigation work, but because the district attorney's (DA
of fice makes choices every day about resources and whether they
want to pursue a ganbling case. Ganbling is a low |evel,

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 20- April 9, 2003



victimess crine. Sonetines the DAs refuse a crimnal
prosecution because they know that the ABC board can take
adm nistrative action to suspend or fine a licensee for this
activity. Even for admnistrative violations, the penalties can
be severe. He said the Departnment of Law has noted that these
investigations fall outside the ABC board' s statute, even though
it is an activity done on |icensed prem ses. So the ABC board
needs a statutory change to allow it to do things |like legally

serve a search warrant. The ganbling cases are not conplex; if
they are conplex, ABC staff bring in other |aw enforcenent
per sonnel . Most of the cases don't interest the local |[|aw

enforcenment or State Troopers; they have higher priorities.
Nunber 0186

MR. CGRIFFIN stated that a |licensee who allows ganbling gains an
unfair advantage over soneone who follows the |aw. Ganbling is
clearly an issue of conpetition between |icensed prem ses at the
retail tier. The authority to do investigations has not added
to the ABC s burden, he said; it actually makes legal an
activity which the ABC board has historically done. If the ABC
board doesn't do it, its not going to get done, he stated. The
ABC board really does object to this audit reconmendati on. The
ABC board is very likely to cone across ganbling activities in
the course of doing other work. Staff know the bartenders, have

the contacts, get the tips. It was asked whether we have
dropped the ball or lost a case because we're inept at doing
this. W haven't, you won't be able to find it. It's a very

good question. The audit attenpts to keep the ABC investigators
focused entirely on adm nistrative matters.

TAPE 03-32, SIDE A

Nunber 0010

MR. GRIFFIN continued that there's a ot of | ow | evel
m sdenmeanor activity that is appropriate for the ABC board to
addr ess. "We are addressing it, we have historically addressed
it, and I think we should be able to continue to address it," he
sai d. He added that the ABC board supports the [sunset]
extension in HB 234. He said the board is functioning as it was
designed to function and is doing a very good | ob. He noted
that the legislative auditor sent questionnaires to various user
gr oups. He invited nenbers to review the responses that cane
back from the board's clients - from police departnents, from

| i censees, and from comunity councils. He said those responses
clearly denonstrate that the board is doing a good job for the
citizens.

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -21- April 9, 2003



Number 0149

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if he preferred a four-year sunset
extension to a three-year extension.

Nunber 0162

MR. GRIFFIN said yes. He said he agreed with the auditors that
sonme operational things needed inprovenent - upgrading the
dat abase and tightening office procedures. He said the board is
wor king on those and will have them addressed in short order. A
|l ack of funding and staff turnover are partly responsible, he
sai d. Moving the board to the Departnment of Public Safety wll
involve sone very major changes. The ABC board is an
i ndependent board and quasi-judicial. He expressed concern
about diluting the board's power and undermning its unique
nature and reasons why it was created.

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked if he had any comments on the
gal | onage i ssue.

Nunmber 0307

MR GRIFFIN said he started work as the director about the tine
this issue started. There's no question that it has been very

frustrating for legislators and for breweries. |It's frustrating
that the players haven't been able to come up with quite the
right solution. Everyone has his or her own definition about

what a level playing field is, he said. He added that he hopes
the legislature can find an equitable solution and put the issue
to rest, once and for all.

Nunmber 0397

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG announced that HB 234 will be held over
for future consideration.

HB 224- Cl GARETTE SALES REQUI REMENTS

Number 0450

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, acting chair, announced that the final
order of business would be HOUSE BILL NO 224, "An Act relating
to a tobacco product manufacturer's conpliance wth certain
statutory requirenents regarding cigarette sales; and providing
for an effective date.”

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -22- April 9, 2003



M KE BARNHI LL, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Conmercial Section,
Cvil Division (Juneau), Departnent of Law, testified on behalf
of the adm nistration, presenting HB 224. He explained that the
bill helps the state protect its revenues derived under the
Master Settlenment Agreenent (MSA). Al aska and 45 other states
entered into the MSA with the tobacco manufacturers in 1998.

MR. BARNHILL explained that wunder the settlenent agreenent,
Al aska's revenues are reduced in certain circunstances. To
avoi d those reductions, Al aska enacted an NPM (non-participating
manuf acturers) statute, AS 45.53, in 1999, and actively enforces
the statute. Unfortunately, he stated, it's difficult to
enforce the statute because the tobacco nmanufacturer that is
failing to conply may be a small manufacturer located in a far-
flung jurisdiction, such as India or the Philippines. Al aska
has, on occasion, filed suit against a tobacco nmanufacturer in
India, hiring a process server to serve the summons and
conplaint in India, and has wultimtely obtained a default
j udgnent . But that's the difficult way of [enforcing the
statute], he said.

Nunmber 0575

MR. BARNHILL stated that in 2001, Alaska enacted AS 45.53.145
[ Notification of nonconpliance; confiscation of nonconplying
cigarettes], and other states followed suit. Last sunmer, the
Nat i onal Associ ation of Attorneys CGeneral set up a working group
to design uniform legislation that all states could enact, and
House Bill 224 is the product of that [nodel |egislation].

MR. BARNHILL stated that HB 224 creates a directory of [tobacco
manuf acturi ng] conpanies that have conplied, either by signing
onto the Master Settlenent Agreenent or by depositing the
requi red amounts of escrow under AS 45.53. If the tobacco
manuf acturers certify that they have [deposited the required
escrow], they get on the |list; conpanies need to certify
annual | y. Their cigarettes can then be sold in Al aska. House
Bill 224 also provides for penalties for nonconpliance. It
provides a process by which the Departnent of Law can serve a
sutmons and conpl aint against a tobacco nmanufacturer that has
failed to conply, not by hiring a process server and serving in
India, as Alaska has done in the past, but by serving the
conplaint on the conm ssioner of the Departnment of Conmunity and
Econom c Devel opnent.

Number 0685

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -23- April 9, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM asked how much is the escrow from a
[ nonpartici pati ng manuf acturer] tobacco conpany.

MR. BARNHILL replied that it changes every year, but in 2001,
the escrow was approximately 1.5 cents per cigarette.

Number 0703

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG asked what he knew about the ability of
Altria Goup [the parent conpany of Philip Mrris] to pay [noney
owed under the Master Settlenent Agreenent]. He al so asked the
ram fications to Al aska's budget if Philip Mrris does not pay.

MR BARNHI LL said he hasn't seen the confidential financial data

about Altria Goup's ability to pay. He said Alaska is
expecting a [tobacco settlenent] paynent next week of $17.6
mllion, of which Philip Mrris would pay 50 percent. Because

the State of Alaska securitized 80 percent of these revenues,
the ultinmate inpact to the general fund would be a loss of $1.7
millionif Altria Goup does not pay.

Nunber 0797

JOHANNA BALES, Revenue Auditor, Departnent of Revenue, explained
that she currently runs the tobacco tax program She al so
enforces certain provisions of the Master Settlenent Agreenent.
She said HB 224 wll definitely be helpful in enforcenent
responsibilities, especially with foreign manufacturers that are
very difficult to track down. This legislation is extrenely

i nportant, and she stated that the departnent supports it.
Nunmber 0884

REPRESENTATI VE ROKEBERG, noting no additional wtnesses, closed
t he public hearing on HB 224.

Number 0888

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM noved to report HB 224 out of commttee
wi th individual recommendations and the two acconpanying zero
fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 224 was reported
fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing Commttee.

ADJ CQURNMENT

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE - 24- April 9, 2003



There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at
5:17 p.m

HOUSE L& C COW TTEE -25- April 9, 2003



